ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
SENATE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COWM TTEE
January 25, 2007
8:59 a.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Senator Lesil McQuire, Chair
Senator Gary Stevens, Vice Chair
Senator Hollis French

Senator Lyda Green

Senat or Con Bunde

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

SENATE BI LL NO. 45
"An Act relating to murder in the first degree.”
HEARD AND HELD

SENATE BILL NO 25
"An Act relating to the state budget and to planning and reports
regarding state finances and operations; and providing for an
effective date.”

MOVED CSSB 25( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

SENATE BILL NO 7
"An Act relating to the voting rights of felons."
Bl LL HEARI NG CANCELED

SENATE BI LL NO. 36
"An Act relating to sentencing for the comm ssion of certain
of fenses influenced by al cohol and to the offense of consunption
of alcohol in violation of sentence."”

SCHEDULED BUT NOT HEARD

PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: SB 45

SHORT TITLE:. PEACE OFFI CER CONVI CTED OF MURDER
SPONSOR( S):  SENATOR(S) OLSON

01/ 16/ 07 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 12/ 07
01/ 16/ 07 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS

SENATE STA COW TTEE -1- January 25, 2007



01/ 16/ 07 (S) STA, JUD
01/ 25/ 07 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BELTZ 211

BILL: SB 25
SHORT TI TLE: STATE PLANNI NG AND BUDGET
SPONSOR(S): SENATOR(S) DYSON

01/ 16/ 07 (S) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/5/07

01/ 16/ 07 (S) READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
01/ 16/ 07 (S) STA, FIN

01/ 25/ 07 (S) STA AT 9: 00 AM BELTZ 211

W TNESS REG STER

DAVI D GRAY, staff

t o SENATOR DONNY OLSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 45 on behal f of Senator Q son.

WALT MONEGAN, Commi ssi oner

Department of Public Safety

Juneau, AK 99811-1200

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Expressed sonme concern regardi ng SB 45.

LORETTA BULLARD, President

Kawer ak, | nc.

Norme, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in favor of SB 45.

GAI L SHUBERT, Executive Vice President

and General Counci

Bering Straits Native Corporation

Nome, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Spoke in favor of SB 45.

SENATOR FRED DYSON

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 25 as sponsor.

LUCKY SHULTZ, Staff

to Senator Fred Dyson

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented SB 25.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 2- January 25, 2007



JACK KREI NHEDER, Chi ef Anal yst

O fice of Managenent and Budget

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Opposed aspects of SB 25.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE
CHAIR LESIL MCGQU RE called the Senate State Affairs Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 8:59:54 AM Senators G een, Bunde,
Stevens, French, and McGuire were present.

SB 45- PEACE OFFI CER CONVI CTED OF MJURDER

CHAI R MCGAUI RE announced the consi deration of SB 45.

DAVID GRAY, staff to Senator Donny O son, said SB 45 is “near
and dear” to Senator Oson's district. It mandates the maxi num
sentence for a peace officer who is convicted of first degree
nmurder and stenms from a case in Nome where a young worman [ Sonya

| vanof f] was nurdered [by a peace officer]. She was well-Iiked,
he said, and it tore up the region. The trial was noved to
Kot zebue, and the peace officer was convicted. Duri ng

sentencing, the state's prosecutor noted that the naxinmm
mandatory sentence is given to anyone who nurders a peace
officer. SB 45 is the conplinent to that |law and states that a
peace officer should be held to a higher standard for “extrene
m sconduct of this nature.”

9:02: 16 AM
MR GRAY said the residents in the region have alnost
unani nously cone forward to request this |egislation.

SENATOR BUNDE said the man was sentenced to 99 years, and this
is what the bill asks for—thout judicial discretion--so it
woul d not have changed the outcome of the trial

MR. GRAY said the bill will have no effect on what occurred in
None, but nmany residents requested that any peace officer
convicted of first degree nurder face the maxi num sent enci ng.

9:03: 39 AM

WALT MONEGAN, Conmm ssioner, Departnent of Public Safety, said
the law nmay create unintended consequences. He said he is not
concerned about the punishnent for a peace officer who violates
the law, “but rather the way it’s currently worded.” He spoke of
the conplicated case of an officer shooting a suspect, and
expressed concern about a defense or a civil action. He said the

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 3- January 25, 2007



wor di ng should be worked on. A police officer, trained in the
use of deadly force, does not have the intent to shoot to kill
Oficers are trained to shoot the center mass, or the biggest
portion of the person, which will nost likely “stop the fight”
or hit the target. He noted that a trooper or officer is often
confronted with inperfect information and has to nmake a split-
second decision. It is analyzed later in the safety of full
dayl i ght, he stat ed.

9:07: 13 AM

COWM SSI ONER MONEGAN said investigators try to understand what
the officer knew at the time to determne if policy was
violated. In cases where other defendants are brought to trial

“I could see it bei ng conplicated by sonme def ense
attorneys.citing that I1.41.100, nurder in the first degree. A
person commts the crinme of nurder if [there is] the intent to
cause death of another person.” |f soneone pulls a weapon on an

officer who is trained to respond by hitting “center mass”,
there is a high likelihood to cause death, he said. Oficers and
troopers are trained to deploy two rounds into the chest area of
an arnmed suspect, and if that person is still standing, they are
trained to shoot either for the head or hips, and that could
certainly be viewed as the intent to cause death. He said he
understands the spirit of the legislation, and anyone should
face the consequences of crimnal acts, but he would hate to see
the bill cause hesitation for officers who are “confronted.”

9:09:39 AM

COWMM SSI ONER MONEGAN gave the exanple of a man planning to shoot
his girlfriend in Anchorage. He saw a man of simlar description
and asked for identification. Conm ssioner Mpnegan had been told
that the person was a nental patient, a convicted arnmed robber,
and had a warrant out for sexual assault. The man reached for a
handgun, and Conm ssi oner Monegan went through a quick decision-
maki ng process on whether to shoot the suspect or not. He said
SB 45 may create another decision to be nmade in a simlar
situation, and when sonmeone hesitates, soneone gets hurts, he
opi ned. He asked the commttee to consider an aggravator in the
bill, so if the individual who commts the crine iIs a peace
officer, “that would be added as an aggravator versus clearly
lining it out as it is now”

9:14:11 AM
CHAIR MCGUI RE said that is a good point. State |aw requires that
a trial for an aggravator be a separate trial, “but it may be
war rant ed.”

SENATE STA COW TTEE -4- January 25, 2007



MR. GRAY said Senator dson does not want to interfere or
inhibit the police office. This is a different situation, he
added, a predator situation.

9:15: 03 AM

SENATOR FRENCH said the Dbill Is interesting and touchy.
Currently a police officer who conmts a nurder faces 20 to 99
years in jail, so the bill “does not introduce a new cal cul us,
it just increases the severity of it.” He said he didn't think
aggravators properly apply to unclassified felonies. The

sentence for murder in the first degree is 20 to 99 years wth
or without any aggravators, so that is not a “viable out” for
the coommittee. He asked if there is a difference between a peace
officer being “on duty” or “being engaged in the performance of
official duties.”

MR, GRAY said he doubts that a difference was considered in the
drafting of the bill, and it is open for consideration.

9:17:29 AM

LORETTA BULLARD, President, Kawerak, Inc, None, said Kawerak is
a regional non-profit corporation and supports SB 45. She said
the entire conmmunity was horrified and devastated when Sonya
| vanoff--a beautiful, vibrant and prom sing young wonan--was
nmurdered. Wien a police officer cane under suspicion, she was
thankful that the Alaska State Troopers were called in. During
sentencing there were famly and friends of the defendant who
were advocating for the mninmm sentence. She said there was
much concern that the offender could get a short jail sentence
with time off for good behavior and early parole. People turn to
peace officers in tinmes of need, and the offender “failed in his
capacity as a sworn police officer and as a hunman being,” she
said. The bill would ensure that peace officers convicted of
first degree murder while on duty would receive a nmandatory
sentence of 99 vyears. She said AS 33.19.90 renoves the
possibility of being eligible for discretionary parole for
crines listed in AS 12.55.125; however, there is no prohibition
agai nst early release for good behavior which could result in a
reduction of time served by one third, and she recommended the
| anguage be anended to not allow early release. She said she
provided the commttee with resolutions from Kawerak and the
Norton Sound Heal th Corporation board in support of SB 45.

9:20:41 AM

SENATOR BUNDE asked if an off-duty officer witnesses a crineg,
does his or her oath require the officer to take sone official
action or act as an officer.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 5- January 25, 2007



COWMM SSI ONER MONEGAN said yes, and it is called “under the color
of authority”. Taking sone action is expected, he stated.

SENATOR BUNDE said that basically an officer is never off duty.

COMM SSI ONER MONEGAN said he believes in the intent of the bil

because police officers are synbols of high standards. There
shoul d be screening in hiring, but things can go awmy. He stated
that those who decide to violate the law nust be held
accountabl e, especially those in positions of trust, |ike police
officers. There are two different issues, and one issue is
“using your job to be a predator, and that is totally crimmnal.”
The other issue is if the law could cause hesitation or
confusion by officers responding to a situation. He said there
is no crimnal intent when an officer responds with deadly force
to defend thenselves or sonebody else. The wording of SB 45

could easily be interpreted “to be that way.” It would be better
to word the bill *"in an aggravator sense.”
9:24: 37 AM

SENATOR BUNDE asked about cases where other officers have been
charged with nmurder in the line of duty.

COWM SSI ONER MONEGAN said he cannot think of any in Anchorage
He said, “Wat |'m anticipating would be, nore so, the civil
actions afterwards,” like the case of O J. Sinpson who was not
convicted but the power of law was used in the civil case. The
Anchorage police departnment has been sued for taking someone’s

life, he noted. The bill could be used “to confuse the issue on
ot her defendants that were taken into custody if one of them had
been killed.” It opens up nore on the civil side, but that is

his intuitive feeling, he said. He stated that his biggest
concern is the hesitation that m ght occur to an officer who has
to choose to use deadly force. This bill nmay be in the back of
their m nds, he said.

9:27:15 AM

CHAI R MCQUI RE asked about any police officer being charged with
murder in such circunstances, and she said it wouldn't be first
degree nurder but second degree nurder or nmanslaughter. Oficers
are taught to stop the suspect from noving forward, and that
does not constitute first degree nurder.

9:28: 21 AM

RICK SVOBODNY, Chief Assistant Attorney GCeneral, Crimna
Di vision, Departnent of Law, said he prosecuted the offender in

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 6- January 25, 2007



the Nonme case, and the man is the only police office in Al aska
ever charged with nurder in the first or second degree. It was a
uni que case. He said the state would always have to prove that
the officer acted with the intent to kill. Looking at self
defense and other types of justification nakes it highly
unlikely that a police officer would ever be charged w th nurder
in the first or second degree if responding to a situation. An
officer acting with wanton disregard, |ike shooting at a
shoplifter in a crowded nmall and killing soneone, may be charged
wi t h mansl aught er.

9: 30: 26 AM
SENATOR CGREEN asked if the expectations for peace officers would
be the sane whether they are on or off duty.

MR. SVOBODNY said that what happened in None is the officer used
his authority to get a 19-year-old girl into his patrol car and
into “a situation where he could ultimately kill her.” The way
the bill is drafted now, it would apply, for exanple, to an
officer who was on duty and had a fight wth his wfe and
intentionally killed her, even though he did not use his police
authority to do so. “lI think that the |anguage about being on
duty needs to be tightened up a little bit.”

9:32: 08 AM

CHAIR MCGQUI RE noted that an officer could be off duty and stil
use the color of authority to commt such a crine, “and it would
be equally as offensive.” She asked for better |anguage.

MR, SVOBCODNY said the |anguage the chair just used may be good:
“use of the color of his authority.”

9:32:42 AM
SENATOR FRENCH asked if it was proved that the None incident
t ook place while the man was on duty.

MR. SVOBODNY said, yes he was on duty.

9:33:17 AM

SENATOR STEVENS said it was a terrible case and the only
incidence of its type in Al aska. He asked about such a predator
being hired and suggested that weeding out predators “is a big
i ssue as well.”

COWM SSI ONER MONEGAN said it depends on how strict a departnent

is on followng their own guidelines for background checks and
other screening. He said his profession tries to do the best

SENATE STA COW TTEE -7- January 25, 2007



possi bl e job, but sonme issues, especially deviant sexuality, are
buried and wundisclosed. He said it takes persistence and
t hor ough background checks.

9: 34: 56 AM

SENATOR STEVENS said is sounds |ike there were several incidents
prior to the murder in which girls were taken into the police
car. “How can we do a better job to make sure that people |ike
this are not in unifornP”

COWMWM SSI ONER MONEGAN said he agrees and assunes None has now
| ooked at their screening process. He spoke of a case of an
of ficer having pornography on his conputer where there was
nothing in his background that would have disclosed it. A
person’s |atent tendencies can cone out after being hired, he
said. He asked if SB 45 could place the follow ng |anguage on
page 2, line 9: the defendant is a peace officer who acted with
crimnal intent and under the color of authority at the tine of
the nmurder. He said that would separate incidents of crimna

intent from depl oynent of deadly force without crimnal intent.

9:37:42 AM
MR. SVOBCODNY said this is a sentencing provision, and cul pable
mental states--intent to kill the person--would be under the

charging provisions. He thinks the |anguage of acting under the
color of authority is good, but he does not know of any
sentencing provision that provides for a person’s state of m nd.
"I think we can work out |anguage that covers what everyone
wants, " he stated.

9:38:41 AM

CHAIR MCGUI RE said she understands Conmi ssioner NMonegan' s
concern with the public relations issue. “You don't want an
officer to have one nore thing to think about to hesitate.” The
| anguage needs to be clear that it is for the abuse of one's
color of authority, she stated.

SENATOR STEVENS asked when a police officer is ever not acting
under the color of authority. “People would always be aware this
person was a police officer whether he’s in uniformor not.”

9:39: 52 AM

MR. SVOBODNY noted the exanple he gave of an officer on duty who
killed his wife in a donestic dispute but was not using the
authority of his position to do so.

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - 8- January 25, 2007



SENATOR STEVENS said everyone in Nome knew the offender was a
police officer.

SENATOR FRENCH suggested the follow ng |anguage: “the defendant
is a peace officer who acts contrary to established police
practices and under color of the authority of his or her
position to commt the nurder."”

9:41: 21 AM
COM SSI ONER MONEGAN said sonething like that would work or
“anything like that that clearly says the officer is acting

within their scope of duties.versus totally outside the |aw.”

9:41: 49 AM
CHAIR MCQUIRE said the conmttee is all headed in the sane
di rection.

GAI L SHUBERT, Executive Vice President and GCeneral Council,
Bering Straits Native Corporation, said her niece is married to
Sonya lvanoff’s brother. M. Ivanoff was in her prime and was
well-liked, and the Bering Straits board took her nurder
seriously and adopted the first resolution in support of what it
called the Sonya lvanoff |law. One of the fundanental duties of a
| aw enforcenent officer is to protect the community and respect
constitutional rights. She said that the board believes that
peace officers should be held to a higher standard. The incident
set a tidal wave of distrust of |aw enforcenent officers and the
judicial system through the Native community of western Al aska.
She noted that the prosecutor in the trial, M. Svobodny, opined
that nurder by an officer on duty should mandate the sane
sentence--99 years--that is inposed on a person killing an
officer on duty. The presiding judge agreed and “thankfully
i nposed the maxi mum sentence of 99 years.” She highlighted the
fact that SB 45 only relates to an officer convicted of first
degree nmurder, “and presumably that police officer would have a
jury of 12 who would hear the facts and circunstances and deci de
whether, in fact, rmurder in the first degree is an appropriate
conviction.” M. Shubert requested that the law be entitled the
Sonya | vanoff | aw.

9:46: 05 AM

CHAIR MCGUI RE spoke of how awful and gut-wenching the nurder
was and how the people in None felt abandoned. “We w Il get sone
version of this bill through.” She said it was good the justice
system did respond in this case and give the officer a 99-year
sentence. This bill will insure the sane sentence every tine an

of ficer uses the color of authority to commt nurder, she said.

SENATE STA COWM TTEE - O- January 25, 2007



SENATOR BUNDE asked if anyone in the position of authority
shoul d be brought under this, including teachers and clergy.

CHAIR MCQU RE said it is not a bad idea. SB 45 wll be brought
up on Tuesday “with an eye toward the anendnents.”

9:48: 33 AM

SB  25- STATE PLANNI NG AND BUDGET

CHAI R MCGAUI RE announced the consi derati on of SB 25.

SENATOR FRED DYSON, Al aska State Legislature, introduced Lucky
Shultz. He said all of the nenbers have discussed what to do
regarding a state financial plan, and SB 25 is largely M.
Shultz's work. This bill asks that the adm nistration reveal a
25-year plan for Alaska’s financial affairs.

9:50:43 AM

LUCKY SHULTZ, staff to Senator Dyson, said SB 25 does not make a
pl an but asks the governor to create a 25-year plan. He said
that across the nation nore people want to know what our
government is doing “and how we're going to take care of
issues.” He noted that he has hel ped corporations put together
strategic plans, and many times those plans were not successfu

“because we didn’'t know what we were doing and what we were
| ooking for in the future.” For the past couple of years he has
heard many Al askans ask what the state's long range plan is.
“And ny response has to be, either we’'re not very good at
communi cating what our long range plan is or we don’t have a
Il ong range plan.” This bill would require the governor to report
the key elenents of a long range plan, including costs and
revenues. He quoted the retired publisher of the Ketchikan Daily
News, saying Al askans need a plan. He said Medicaid costs are
rising, and there will be huge shortfalls in retirenment benefits
nati onwi de. He said the retirenent/health care plans alone wll
cost a trillion dollars across the country. He said that half of
the 500 biggest conpanies wll Jlose half of their senior
managers in five years. Civil service will have trouble finding
people to run the governnent, he not ed.

9:53: 45 AM

MR. SHULTZ said the European conm ssion has an energy efficiency
action plan to reduce energy consunption by 20 percent. Brazil
has an 80-year plan, Bp has a 50-year plan, and nany Japanese
conpani es have 100-year plans. He showed a chart called the

SENATE STA COW TTEE -10- January 25, 2007



gully chart of Alaska' s declining oil and gas revenue. A gas
pipeline will likely take 10 years before providing revenue. The
Al aska Departnent of Natural Resources (DNR) provided a chart
showing a decline in oil production and revenue. He spoke of
Medi caid costs by the year 2015, *“all of a sudden seniors start
escalating.” He said, in 2018, seniors “surpass spending of any
other age group in Alaska.” The population is aging. He noted
that, “for the first tine in recent history,” elderly people are
moving to Alaska. He said they are doing so for different
reasons including: to be with their children; because Al aska has
better road infrastructure now, and “partly because of the
hospitals and partly because of entertainment.” Costs of
Medi caid are going up, he noted. Alaska's share of Medicaid is
going to go from $350 million to over $2 billion by 2025 because
of the growi ng nunber of seniors, the fact that seniors have
hi gher costs for Medicaid, Medicaid costs are going up, and the
federal government is reducing their share of Medicaid.

9:57:23 AM

MR, SHULTZ said the state needs to | ook ahead. By 2025 the fy08
budget allocation for health takes wup alnost half of al
all ocations, he said, and if noney for education is added, al
the other departnents are squeezed even nore. “How are we going
to bal ance our budget when education and health are consum ng so
much of the budget?” he asked. He estimated there will be $10
billion needed for unfunded liabilities of Alaska s retirement
systens. He said Alaska now has $950 nillion in deferred
mai nt enance, and the University of Alaska is asking for $67
mllion per year for the next several years to address deferred
mai nt enance, “so, again, the question is, how are we going to
handle it?” SB 25 asks the governor for the projected revenues
by source and expenditures for the next 25 years and how the
budget will be balanced. He said Medicaid is just one little
element. M. Shultz asked what happens when expenditures are
projected to exceed revenues. He noted that the gas line is at
| east ten years away, and the chart shows that Al aska already
has a problem Wat happens if the revenue, |ike the petrol eum
tax, is forestalled a year? He told the commttee that Venezuel a
and Brazil are planning a 7,700-m | e natural gas pipeline across
South Anerica, nore than twice the size of Al aska' s potenti al
pi peline. A shortage of steel and wel ders could be a problem for
Al aska. The bill asks for a debt analysis; growng debt is
serviced out of the general fund. “What is [the governor’s] plan
for managi ng that debt? What’'s the strategy? Unfunded
liabilities—-how nuch per year? Are we going to do several
hundred mllion dollar contributions every year? Don’t know.~

SENATE STA COW TTEE -11- January 25, 2007



10: 01: 23 AM
MR. SHULTZ asked what actions the |egislature should take, and

by when, to make the governor’s plan work. The bill wll becone
effective on July 1, so the information will be required next
January. “It wll take at |east that |ong, and perhaps |onger.to
get the information that |'’m looking for in this bill.” He said

that the legislature is facing unprecedented fiscal pressures as
| egi sl atures do everywhere, and “the tinme for action is now "

10: 02: 03 AM
SENATOR BUNDE said the Departnent of Labor has a chart of Al aska
denogr aphi cs showing the snmallest cohort will be 30 to 50-year-

old workers. He asked the chart to be incorporated as it
i ndi cates another salient factor in the need to plan ahead.

10: 02: 45 AM

SENATOR FRENCH said the bill is a great idea that deserves
t hought, but he asked how the governor can realistically project
beyond his or her admnistration. “How do you get a report

that’s.worth the paper it's printed on when the political
| andscape changes every four years?” Incone can be projected but
expenditures are politically driven, he stated.

MR. SHULTZ said no one can know costs and revenue in 25 years.
Hs hope 1is to institutionalize a presentation to the

| egi slature every January. |f a new governor plans to change
everything, “part of this bill says your going tell us the
assunptions that you're basing these projections on.” The

| egi sl ature can chal l enge those assunptions or not, he said. The
state can't just |ook at next year and hope for the best after
that. Currently the governor is required to give the |legislature
a budget for one year, “and when we’'re looking at things like a
gas pipeline and [petroleum production tax] that inpacts the
state for 20, 30, or 50 years into the future, we need to have
the full picture.to nmake informed decisions.” If an incomng
adm nistration changes things, the legislature can disagree
during the January briefing sessions, he stated.

10: 05: 23 AM
SENATOR DYSON said economics is not a disnal science and there
are good tools for analyzing. He said that the Departnent of

Revenue has al ways overesti mat ed oi | pr oducti on and
underestinmated oil prices. There are patterns to see when
| ooking back. The legislature wll be asking the current
governor if her budget is sustainable at ©predicted oi

production and prices. He surmsed that it 1is probably not
sustai nabl e, so the l|egislature needs to ask for a plan of what

SENATE STA COW TTEE -12- January 25, 2007



to do until the next sugar daddy shows up. This bill should help
get away from the past strategies of hope or hide. He explained
the hope strategy as a fairy godnother rescuing the state from
its financial irresponsibility. He said “all of us” are getting
nore cynical about “mraculous deliverances from our own
irresponsibilities.” The other strategy is to hide the inpending
problenms by spending the noney that is political popular and
letting the next admnistration face "the stinky stuff in the
closet." He said problens will not be hidden under SB 25, and
the | egislature and governor have to answer the question of how
the state is going to pay for expenditures.

10: 08: 41 AM
SENATOR STEVENS said the information wll be enornously
val uabl e, but it seens very costly.

MR, SHULTZ said he is not going to cone up with the cost, but
the departnments are looking at it. Some departnents will say it
is not a big deal. He said he thinks it wll take at |[east
another full-time position. “You re making decisions for a
pipeline into several vyears in the future at billions and
billions of dollars; | think you need good information to make
t hat deci sion.”

10: 10: 08 AM

SENATOR BUNDE concurs with Senator French that this mght be an
exercise in snoke and mrrors. There is sonme value in
| egislators receiving the information but better value for the
public to receive it. He said Al askans have a variety of
opinions but the one thing he has heard consistently is that
there is too nmuch state spending. The public has to be part of
the solution; the public demands the spending and the pork, he
stated. People are pandering to self interest and they have to
understand there are |ong-term consequences. He said it has been
an Al aska tradition since the gold rush days, to “conme here and
make your stake and get out.”

10: 12: 20 AM
JACK KREI NHEDER, Chief Analyst, Ofice of Mnagenent and Budget,
said the Palin admnistration supports long-term fiscal

pl anning, which ties in wth her 2008 budget proposal. Key
el ements of the budget are to spend less, control governnent
grow h, save surpluses, and live within the state’'s neans by
keeping the FYO8 budget in line with projected revenues. He said
a docunent created from SB 25 needs to be worth the paper it is
printed on and not an exercise that sits on the shelf collecting
dust. He noted that OVB has been involved in long-term fiscal

SENATE STA COW TTEE -13- January 25, 2007



pl anni ng exercises over the years since the md 1980s when oi
prices took a sharp downturn. The work needs to be done, but is
it the best use of staff tinme and expense? he asked.

10: 15: 33 AM

MR. KREI NHEDER said the gully chart of |ong-range spending and
revenue through 2020 highlights the fact that Alaska s |ong-
range finances can be captured in one chart. He suggested the
state doesn’'t need a several hundred page report that the
| egi sl ature may not have tinme to read. Modre targeted information
may be a better use of everyone's tinme. A 25-year tinme frane is
better than 100 years, because looking into the future is risky;
the one guarantee is that it will be wong. He said the gully
chart | ooked forward 13 years, which is a nore reasonable, and
t he added val ue of projecting 25 years nmay be m ni nal

CHAI R MCGUI RE asked what tinme franme he woul d suggest.

10: 18: 16 AM

MR. KREI NHEDER said perhaps 15 years. Once a projection gets
beyond 10 or 15 years its value declines, and the line tends to
straighten out at that point. The fiscal note recognizes that
this is not a trivial anount of work and would require sone
additional staff. The work involved is tough to project, and
that is why M. Kreinheder provided an indeterm nate note. He
said OVMB would need at |east one new position, but it is
difficult to know what other departnents will need. The big jobs
would be the Medicaid projections for the Departnent of Health
and Social Services, enrollment and educational foundation
formula projections for the Departnent of Educations, and

projections for public facilities, which wll affect six other
departnments. He said he has heard sone concerns from other
departnments regarding the work that wll be required. H's

concern is figuring out the nost effective use of everyone's
time and recogni zing that |large reports don't get read.

10: 21: 24 AM

MR. KREI NHEDER said the gully chart showed the challenge of the
next 10 to 15 years until a gas line can be built. The governor
is committed to getting it built. The gully chart is still
accurate and the gap of declining oil production needs to be
bridged until the gas line is operating. He told the legislature
that it was inportant to keep the lid on spending, not spend the
state’s surplus, and extend the life of the constitutional
budget reserve “so that as oil production does drop off those
funds woul d be avail able to hel p bal ance the budget.

SENATE STA COW TTEE -14- January 25, 2007



10: 22: 51 AM
SENATOR BUNDE spoke of an unsustainable anmount of state funding

that will put the state in “deficit node” in two to three years.
The state will have to start living off of the savings in the
constitutional budget reserve. He said Senator Dyson called the
governor’s budget transitional, and no one believes it wll be
as small as the governor has projected. “Mst people think that
the $150 million in savings will be very difficult to achieve

even if we achieve that, this year’s projected budget goes up
$600 million over last year.” The tail begins to wag the dog if

that is the case, he said. If the gully happens, the state wll
have to live off savings, and “the w sdom of putting noney in
the corpus of the permanent fund, where it will be unavail able
to help bridge this gap, has to cone into question.”

10: 24: 37 AM
CHAIR MCGQUIRE said this bill is nore appropriate in the finance
commttee, and she would like to nmove it. She asked about

reduci ng the projection to 15 years.

SENATOR DYSON said the value and credibility does decrease over
time, but it is still valuable. Each year the work wll be
di m nished. He said he is not wedded to 25 years, but 15 years
woul d be the absolute mnimum Senator Geen always asks, “Wy
would you do that?” This kind of information will nake “all of
us ask the question: why would we do that? Wiy would we be
buil di ng expectations that are not sustainable?” he said. He
stated that there is good expertise in |legislative finance that
will challenge all of the |egislature’ s actions.

10: 26: 50 AM

CHAIR MCGUI RE noved Anendnent 1. “Wierever the nunber 25 is,
that it be stricken and replaced wth the nunber 15.” She said
it is a starting point, and she respects OW' s opinion that the
val ue wavers beyond that tinme frane.

SENATOR GREEN said page 4 speaks of a six-year increnent, and
she asked if that needs to be changed to fifteen. She noted
there is an additional six years on page 4, line 4.

MR. SHULTZ said no, that is the original six years that is
already in statute for where the sources are.

10: 28: 49 AM
Hearing no objections, Anendnent 1 carried.

SENATE STA COW TTEE - 15- January 25, 2007



SENATOR BUNDE SENATOR nobved SB 25, as anended, from conmittee
with individual recomendations and attached fiscal note(s).
There being no objection, CSSB 25(STA) passed out of commttee.

10: 29: 14 AM
CHAIR MCGUI RE adjourned the Senate State Affairs neeting at
10:29 a. m

SENATE STA COW TTEE -16- January 25, 2007



